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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid
down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our
audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying
financial statements;

b) Except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books
of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

h)
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The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

The maodification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the
Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified
opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in note 34 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2025,;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

ii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in note 54(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in note 54(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March
2025.

(%
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vi. As stated in note 55 to the financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, except for matters mentioned below, the Company, in respect of
financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the
consequential impact of the exceptions given below. Furthermore, except for the
matters mentioned below, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention:

i. The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting
software to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of accounting
records by the Company;,

ii. The accounting software retains the log of only 99 modifications made in master
data at the application level. In the absence of evidence, we are unable to
comment on whether the modifications exceeded the specified limit set within the
said software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013-

DeepaklMittal
Partner

Membership No.: 5038437,

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification
programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The
quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions and such statements are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subject to audit/review, except
for the following:
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Nature of Amount Amount | Difference
. current Current | disclosed as per
Nan;;::'f(the cﬁm}?[ assets Quarter | asset as per books of Remarks
sanctoned offered as type return accounts

security (A) (B) (C=A-B)

HDFC Bank 2,5600.00 | Stock and Quarter Stock 1,387.62 1,400.43 (12.81) | The

Limited book debts 1 Company
submitted the
returns to the
banks based
on provisional
books of
Book 604.63 608.24 (3.61) | accounts
Debts within the due
date resulting
in variances
vis-a-vis
books of
accounts
finalized by
the
management
subsequently.

Working

(iii) (a) The Company has prov-ided loan to subsidiary company during the year as per details given
below:

Particulars Loans*
(Rs. In lakhs)

Aggregate amount provided/granted
during the year:

- Subsidiary 78.04

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date:

- Subsidiary 80.60
*Includes closing balance of interest accrued as at balance sheet date.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made, and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided any guarantee
or given any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
the payment of interest has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to
comment as to whether the repayments/ receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
in respect of loans, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which
is overdue for more than 90 days. Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company
for recovery of such principal amounts and interests.

(e) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal has
not been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans
have not been demanded for repayment as on date.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2025

(f) The Company has granted loan which is repayable on demand, as per below details:

Particulars Related Parties
(Rs. In lakhs)

Aggregate of loans/advances in

nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) 80.60

- Agreement does not specify any terms -

or period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 80.60

Percentage of loans/advances in 100%

nature of loan to the total loans

(iv)  Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has -
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made
by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under

section 185 of the Act.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been deposited
with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in
few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature | Gross Amount paid | Period to | Forum where | Remarks,
the of Amount | under Protest | which the | dispute is | if any
statute | dues (Rs. In | (Rs. In lakh) amount pending
lakh) relates
Indian Stamp 3.34 F.Y 2021-22 | Chief -
Stamp Duty Controlling
duty Act, Revenue
1899 Authority,
Haryana

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions

were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books

of accounts.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term
loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according fo the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.
(GIRNDIGR
V5 J
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash fransactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) has only one CIC as part of its Group. ;

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 8,047.42 lakhs and 15,637.47 lakhs respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

- Zn
*nf-b
Deepak Mittal

Partner
Membership No.: 503843

UDIN: 25503843BMLCQA8799

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Revolt
Intellicorp Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025,
based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
\& " ‘& TN
Deepak ;ittal =

Partner
Membership No.: 503843

UDIN: 25503843BMLCQA8799

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Chartered Accountants



Revolt Intellicorp Private |.imited
CIW:1)24203DL2017PTC420E72
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 769 70 890.47
Right of use assets 5 93.37 -
Intangible assets 6 569 80 7719
Intangible assets under development 6 28 85 46.45
Financial assets

- Investment 1 1.00 1.00

- Other financial assets 7 1.10 112
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 : -
Non-current tax assets (net) 10 5.84 10.00
Other non-current assets 12 1,633.13 1,115.55

3,092.59 2,141.78
Current assets
Inventories 13 1.954.40 128496
Financial assets

- Trade receivables 14 314.47 232,67

- Cash and cash equivalents 15 0.32 11.28

- Bank balances othar than cash and cash equivalents 16 721.19 245.20

- Loan 8 8060 -

- Other financial assets 7 242.93 175.87
Other current assets 17 1,341.02 1,670.40

5,354,93 3,921.38
TOTAL ASSETS 8,447.52 6,063.16
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18 184.30 184.30
Other equity 19 (27,961.58) (19,502 38)
(27,777.28) (19,318.08)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 20 3,145.02 -

- Lease liabilities 21 88.45 -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9 - )
Other nan-current liabilities 25 217.82 278.00
Provisions 22 637.98 563 88

4,089.27 841.88
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 20 27.368.68 19.427.31

- Lease liabilities 21 5.43

- Trade payables 23

Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 285 06 25.92
Totai outstanding duss of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,357.61 1,841.30
and smali enterprises

- Other financial liabilities 24 1,093.08 1,039.25
Provisions 22 639.68 548 92
Other current liabilities 25 1,385.99 1,656 66

32,135.53 24,539.36
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,447.52 6,063.16

Material accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 001076N/ N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner E
Membership No.” 503843~

Place Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited i
[

Sandeep Kumar
Direclor
DIN 08122549

Place:; Gurugram

Date’ 27 May 102/5
Rahul Mutreja
Company Secretary

Membership No. A31225

Place: Guruaram
Date: 27 May 2025

Vaibhav Pooni
Director
DIN: 08924172

Place: Guruaram
Dale 27 May 2025




Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited
CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue
Revenue from operations 26 15,078.57 11,120.96
Other income 27 86.62 69.69
15,165.19 11,190.65
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 28 14,053.78 5,495 44
Change in inventory 29 (177.74) 3,988.09
Employee benefits expense 30 2.863.52 1,981.51
Finance costs 31 2,044.37 1,070.29
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 355.53 361.45
Other expenses 33 4,553.33 4,918.43
23,692.79 17,815.21
Loss before exceptional items and tax (8,527.60) (6,624.56)
Exceptional items - 10,008.01
Loss before tax (8,527.60) (16,632.57)
Tax expense

Current tax expense "

Deferred tax expense 9 - -
Loss for the year (8,527.60) (16,632.57)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax) 22.49 20.93

Other comprehensive income for the year 22.49 20.93

Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,505.11) (16,611.64)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Rs. 1 per equity share) 40

Basic (Rs.) (46.27) (90.25)

Diluted (Rs.) (46.27) (90.25)

Material accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

E \N»‘Q‘

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No.: 503843

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited

25

Sandeep Kumar
Director
DIN: 08122549

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Rahul Mutreja

Company Secretary
Membership No. A31225

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Vaibha\.'\l\’oonia
Director
DIN: 06924172

Place: Gurugram
Date' 27 May 2025
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Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited
CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (after exceptional items)

Adjustments for:

FAME incentive written off

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest income

Liabilities written back

Gain on termination of lease

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Employee stock option expense

Finance cost

Provision for bad and doubtful balances

Loss on discard of inventory

Operating loss hefore working capital changes

Movement in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in assets
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other assets

Financial assets

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Trade payables

Provisions

Financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Cash used in operations

Net income tax refunds (net)

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A)

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital
advance and payables)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary

Loan given to subsidiary

Interest on Income tax

Movement in fixed deposits (net)

Interest income received

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(8,527.60) (16,632.57)
. 5,005.58
355.53 361.45
(27.83) (25.29)
(56.32) 2
. (7.04)
. (1.52)
45.91 &
2,044.37 990.13
78.76 640.69
7.76 -
(6,079.42) (9,668.57)
(577.20) 4,138.35
(80.80) (125.49)
(66.92) (1,214.93)
(763.70) 1,253.94
(168.23) (6,845.73)
187.35 166.20
53.83 (358.74)
(330.23) 41.65
(7,825.32) (12,613.32)
3.67 49.82
(7,821.65) (12,563.50)
(700.55) (106.61)
. 2.77
. (1.00)
(78.04) y
0.49 4.25
(475.99) 207.24
21.89 25.29
(1,232.20) 131.94
3,967.60 -
7,118.79 13,406.56
(2,043.50) (990.13)
9,042.89 12,416.43
(10.96) (15.13)
11.28 26.41
0.32 11.28




Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited
CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
1) Cash and cash equivalent comprises of (also refer note 15): As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks (current accounts) 0.32 11.28
0.32 11.28

2) Refer note 48 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

3) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7
"Statement of Cash flow".

Material accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
This is the Cash Flow Statement as referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of Ojrectors of
Chartered Accountants Revolt Intellicorp Priva i

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013
1] \
% " ; A 'Nvﬁ' S _%A:‘l\f
pak Mittal

Dee Sandeep Kumar Vaibhav Pgonia
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 503843 DIN: 08122549 DIN: 069241?2
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025

Foid

Rahul Mutreja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A31225

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025




Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited

CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1

3

Corporate information

Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited, (“the Company") a private company was incorporated on 28th August 2017 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in
the manufacturing and selling of electric motorcycles, spare parts and other related services. The Company has changed its registered office at H. No. 51, Village Hauz Khas, Delhi-110016,India
w.e f.1 April 2025 and its corporate address at Gurugram, Haryana, India.

Basis of preparation

(A) The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, pursuant to Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from lime to time, presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind AS compliant schedule”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured al fair value; and
b) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured al fair value

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in INR, which is the Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs
unless, except when otherwise indicated.

(B) The Company has acquired a new subsidiary company in the name of Revolt Coco Limited on 28 March 2024 (under CIN-U45300DL2021PLC388963). As per Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 as amended by Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2016, the Company has availed exemption for preparation of consolidated financial statements. being intermediate wholly owned
subsidiary company of Rattanindia Enterprises Limited, who prepares the consolidated financial stalements as per applicable regulations

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 27 May 2025

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimaltes, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumplions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assels and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reporled
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimales could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Appropriate changes in eslimales are made as management becomes aware of changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Material accounting policy information
a) A. Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operaling
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/ non current classification of assels and liabilities.

B. Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

_ it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

-itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

-1t is expecled lo be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to seltle a liability for al least 12 months after the reporting date

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: -

- it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operaling cycle; .

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; - it is due to be seltied within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer seitlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could. at the option of the
counterparty, result in its seltlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred lax assels and liabilities (if
any) are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b) Revenue recognition
Sale of qoods/ rendering of services

To determine whelher to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-slep process:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligalions

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the lransaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognise the revenue when/as the performance obligation(s) isfare satisfied.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties including Goods and Service Tax and any
other government subsidies. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product / service to a customer which coincides with the delivery of the vehicle/ rendering of
service. The Company also provides certain services to ils customers, as an additional feature lo the main product, the price of which is included in the lotal consideration payable by the
customer. The Company carves out the price of the service and recognises it as a separale line of revenue over the period of service rendered. Till such time, the amount of consideration
received attributable to this service is treated as deferred income.

Subscription income is recognised over the period of service rendered.
The Company receives advance payments from customers for the sale of electric motoreycles. The Company applies the practical expedient for short-term advances received from customers,
that is, the promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the period between the transfer of the promised good or service and the

payment is one year or less.

Warranty provisions

The Company offers warranty for its products, underiaking lo repair or replace the items that fail to perform salisfactorily during the warranty period. Such assurance-lype warranties are
accounted for under Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ Provision for warranty relaled costs are recognised when the bike is sold to the custamer. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience of the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management eslimales regarding possible future incidence based on correclive
actions on product failures. The initial estimate of warranty related costs is revised periodically

——




Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited

CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised by the Company when the goods are delivered/ services are rendered to the customer as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of lime is required before payment due.

Contract assels

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs part of its obligation by transferring goods or services lo the
customers before the customer pays the consideration or before payment is dus, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration when that right is conditional on the Company's
future performance.

Conltract liability
A conlract liabilily is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract i.e., fransfers control of the related goods or services to the customer.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on lime proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding and rate applicable. For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) i.e. lhe rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the
financial assels. The future cash flows include all other transaction costs paid or received, premiums or discounts if any, etc.

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cosl, interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, taking into account the amount outstanding and effective interest rate

c) Government grants
Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants/subsidy will be received.
When the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period necessary 1o
match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensale.

d) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds
to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged lo the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Barrowing cosls, allocated to and utilised for
qualifying assets. pertaining to the period from commencement of aclivities relating to construction/ development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to
the cost of the assets. Any income earned on the temporary deployment/ investment of those borrowings is deducled from the borrowing costs so incurred. Capilalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended and charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on Lhe gualifying assets is interrupted. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

e) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement
Properties. plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebales are deducted in arniving at the purchase price. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow 1o the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of property. plant and equipment and having different
useful life are accounted separately.

Capital work-in-progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimates of useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per Schedule Il of the Act
Plant and machinery 4 1o 15 years

Plant and machinery- moulds 510 15 years

Electric equipment 10 years

Furniture and fixture 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Vehicles 5 o 8 years

Computers 3 years

The leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease period or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives thal are acquired separately are carried al cosl less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The eslimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separaltely are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of acquired software is amortised over a period in the range of 3-5 years from the date of acquisition

Internally- qenerated Intangible Assets
Expenditure on research activilies is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.




Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited

CIN:U34203DL2017PTC420572

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

)

An internally generated intangible assel arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all the following have been demanstrated

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefils;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources lo complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
- the abilily to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assels is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible assel first meets the recognition criteria listed
above Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent 1o initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reporled al cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assels thal are acquired separately. The useful life of internally generaled intangible asset is estimated as 5 years.

Intangible asset under development
The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance wilh the accounting policy. Inilial capitalisation of cosls is based on management's judgement that

technological and ecenomic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an eslablished project management model. The
amount includes investment in development of new product model.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible assel is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expecled from use or disposal. Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the assel is derecognised

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that a non-financial asset may be impaired. if any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the non-financial assel. If such recoverable amount of the non-financial assel or the recoverable amount of the cash generaling unil to which the
non-financial asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. All non-financial assels are subsequently reassessed for indicalions that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is
reversed if the non-financial asset’s or cash-generaling unit's recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value
adjusted for ransaction costs, unless the financial instrument is designated to be measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

Initial and subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost — The financial assels are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

« The assel is held wilhin a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

« Contractual lerms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using lhe effective interest rate (EIR) method. All other debt instruments are measured at Fair
Value through other comprehensive income or Fair value through profil and loss pased on Company's business model. All investments in mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recoghnition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

Financial liabilities

The Gompany's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and security deposits.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same iender on
substantially ditferent terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognilion of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an
intention 1o setlle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recagnition of impairment loss for financial assels carried at amortised cost

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expecls lo receive. When
estimating the cash flows, the Company consider —

+ All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected Iife of the assets
+ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

Other financial assels
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
and if credit risk has increased significantly, life time impairment loss is provided otherwise provides for 12 months expected credit losses
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amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i) Inventories
Invenlories are valued al the lower of cost and net realisable value.
i) Cost of raw malerials, components, stores and spares are ascerlained on a moving average basis.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise of direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead, the latler being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of moving average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the eslimated costs necessary to make the sale. Materials and
supplies held for use in production of inventeries are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expecled to be sold at or above cost. Slow and non-moving material,
absolescence, defective inventories are duly provided for.

k) Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profil and
Loss, except when they relate lo ilems that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

Gurrent income tax is measured al the amount expected to be paid 1o the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards
(ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacled as at the reporling date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside statement of profit and loss in OCI or equity depending upon the treatment of the underlying item.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to seltle on a nel basis, or
to realise the assel and liability simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax liabililies are generally recognised in full for all laxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based
on the Company's forecast of fulure operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credil. Unrecognised
deferred tax assels are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured al the tax rales that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is setlled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss
in OC| or equity depending upon the treatment of underlying item.

1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term highly liquid investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily
convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

m) Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contribution to the statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is a defined contribution plan
and contribution paid or payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which the services are rendered

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the financial statements in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the reporting
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit actuarial method.

Acluarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumplions are credited or charged to the statement of OCI in the period in which such gains or losses are
determined.

Other long-term employee benefits

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated
amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expecled to be availed by the employees. Liabilily in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expecled to be availea more
than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in acluarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are
determined.

Short-term employee benefits
Expense in respect of other shorl term benefils is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

n) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized only when Lhere is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These

estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material

Conlingent liability is disclosed for:

+ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

+ Presenl obligations arising from past evenis where it is nol probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made.

Conlingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefil is probable, related asset is disclosed in the financial statements

o) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the nel profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighled average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atlributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares
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p) Lease
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying assel) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’

Classification of leases
The Company enlers into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the |ease is based on several faclors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at
end of lease term, lessee's option lo extend/purchase etc

Recognition and initial measurement

Al lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheel. The right-of-use assel is measured al cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the assel at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease
payments made in advance of lhe lease commencement date (net of any incenlives received)

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assels on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Al lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid al that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if
that rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent lo inilial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-
measured to reflect any reassessment or medification. or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

q) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupee (%) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the dale the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary ilems are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured al fair value in a foreign currency are lranslated using the exchange rales at the dale when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recagnised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

r) Investment in subsidiary company
Investments representing equity interest in subsidiary company is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indicalion of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and writien down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of the investment, the difference between nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss

s) Segment reporting
Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the interal reporting done to the Chief Operaling Decision Maker.
Identification of segments:
In accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments, the operaling segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's
management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses thal relate to ransactions with any of the Company's other components.

Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance
and for which discrete financial information is available.

t) Share based payment

Employees (including senior exacutives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-setiled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost
is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share Options outstanding reserves in equity, over the period in which the perfermance and/or service conditions are fulfiled in employee
benefils expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity settled transactions al each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent lo which the vesting period has expired and
the Company's besl estimate of the number of equily instruments that will ultimately vest. The Statement of Profit and Loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense
recognized is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment lransaclion or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparly, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit and loss account.

u) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounling estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected. In particular, information aboul significant areas of eslimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax — Note 3(k), Note 9 and Note 43
Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets — Note 3(g) and Nate 3(i)
Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment — Note 3(e) and Note 4

Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 3(m), Note 3(t) and Note 39
Valuation of inventories — Note 3(j) and Nole 13
Leases - Note 3(p) and Note 49

Fair value measurement — Note 3(h) and Note 45
Expected credit loss — Note 3(i) and Note 46
Warranty provision - Note 3(b) and Note 22
Intangible Assets - Note 3(f) and Note 6
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v) Recent accounting pronouncements
New and Amended Standards adopted by the Company:

i) The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for their annual reporting penod commencing April 1 2024. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) vide its notifications
daled 12 August 2024 and 09 September 2024 has issued Companies (India Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (India Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2024, which introduced amendments in certain Indian Accounting Standards that are effective from 1 April 2024:

Ind AS 117 — Insurance contracls - MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive slandard thal prescribe, recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements, to avoid diversities in praclice for
accounting insurance contracts and it applies lo all companies i.e., to all “insurance contracts” regardless of the issuer However, Ind AS 117 is not applicable to the entities which are insurance
companies registerad with IRDAI

Ind AS 116- The amendmenls require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked o index or a rate in a way it does not result into gain on right-of-
use asset it retains.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
ii) New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 1ssued from time to time. As
at 31 March 2025, MCA has not nolified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company that are not yet effective.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Right of use assets

Particular Factoryl/office Total
Building

Gross carrying value

As at 1 April 2023 121.71 121.71

Additions during the year - =

Disposals during the year 121.71 121.71

As at 31 March 2024 - -

Additions during the year 94.35 94.35

Disposals during the year - -

As at 31 March 2025 94.35 94.35

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2023 32.42 32.42
Charge during the year - -
Disposals during the year 32.42 32.42
As at 31 March 2024 - -
Charge during the year 0.98 0.98
Disposals during the year - -
As at 31 March 2025 0.98 0.98

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2024 > .
As at 31 March 2025 93.37 93.37

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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6

(i

(i)

Intangible assets

Particular Software Technical know- how / Total Intangible asset under
Product development development

Gross carrying value

As at 1 April 2023 133.85 540.11 673.96 -

Additions during the year # - - 46.45

Disposals / adjustiments - - - -

As at 31 March 2024 133.85 540.11 673.96 46.45

Additions during the year 8.65 588.70 597.35 571.10

Disposals / adjustments - - - 588.70

As at 31 March 20256 142.50 1,128.81 1,271.31 28.85

Accumulated amortization

As at 1 April 2023 62.41 405.23 467.64 -

Charge during the year 2465 104.48 129.13 -

Disposals / adjustments = - -

As at 31 March 2024 87.06 509.71 596.77 -

Charge during the year 2631 78.63 104.94

Disposals / adjustments & - -

As at 31 March 2025 113.37 588.34 701.71 -

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2024 46.79 30.40 77.19 46.45

As at 31 March 2025 29.13 540.47 569.60 28.85

Current borrowings are secured by first mortgage and exclusive charge on entire existing and future intangible assets of the Company (refer note 20). Also, refer note 42 for pledge of intangible assels

Ageing of intanaible asset under development:

As at 31 March 2025

Particular

Amount in intangible assets under development for a perio

d of

Less than 1 year| Lessthan 1-2 year Less than 2-3 year More than 3 Total
vears
Projectin progress = = 28.85 - 28.85
As at 31 March 2024
Particular Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 year| Less than 1-2 year Less than 2-3 year More than 3 Total
vears
Project in progress - 46.45 - - 46 45

(i) Intangible assels under development, whose completion is overdue or exceeded its cost compared to its original plan: Rs. Nil (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil).

{iv) There were no borrowing costs that were capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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-}

Other financial assets

Non-current
Considered good, unless stated otherwise
Bank deposits with maturily more than 12 months*

*Includes deposits under lien/ pledged including against bank guarantees, refer note 34

Current

Considered good, unless stated otherwise
EV Subsidy receivable

Receivable from slatutory authorities

Other receivables from dealers

Securily deposils

Considered doubtful
Slate incenlive recoverable

Less: Provision for doubtful balance

Loan

Loan given to subsidiary
(includes interest accrued amounting lo Rs. 2.56 lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil))

Details of loans given under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

1.10 1.12
1.10 1.12
762.46 -
139.91 128.05
12.53 12.24
28.03 35.58
350.46 350.46
1,293.39 526.33
350.46 350.46
942.93 175.87
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

80.60

80.60

Name of the Party Relationship Purpose Interest As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Revolt COCO Lid. Subsidiary General corporate purpose 7.25% 80.60 -
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)
As at As at

Deferred tax asset not recognised on:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels 62.44 72.29
Provisions for employee benefits and warranly allowable on payment basis 32156 280.07
Provisions for doublful debts, advances and conlingencies 19.82 16125
Lease liabilities 23.63 -
Right-of-use assets (23.50) -
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 6,888.48 4,932.08
Total deferred tax asset not recognised 7,312.43 5,445.69
Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
Particulars As at Not recognised Notrecognised in Recognised in profit or As at
31 March 2024 in profit or loss other loss 31 March 2025
comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels 72.29 10.15 - 82.44
Provisions for employee benefits and warranty allowable on payment basis 280.07 47.15 (5.66) 321.56
Provisions for doubtful debts, advances and contingencies 161.25 (141.43) - - 19.82
Lease liabilities B 23.63 - 23.63
Right-of-use assets - (23.50) = (23.50)
Unaksorbed business losses and depreciation 4,932.08 1,956.40 - - 6,888.48
Deferred tax asset not recognised 5,445.69 1,872.40 (5.66) - 7,312.43
Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
Particulars As at Not recognised Not recognised in Recognised in profit or As at
1 April 2023 in profit or loss other loss 31 March 2024
comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 30.88 41.41 - - 7229
Provisions for employee benefits and warranty allowable on payment basis 243.51 41.83 5.27) - 280.07
Provisions for doublful debls, advances and conlignencies 444 .20 (282.95) - - 161.25
Lease liabilities 24.78 (24.78) - - -
Right-of-use assels (22.47) 22.47 - - -
Other temporary differences 1.88 (1.88) - -
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 898.33 4,033.75 - - 493208
Deferred tax asset not recognised 1,621.11 3,829.85 (5.27) - 5,445.69
Deferred tax assel recognised on:
-Other temporary differences - - - &
The following table summarises the lolal unused lax losses and unabserbed depreciation under the Income Tax Acl, 1961, as at 31 March 2025
As at 31 March 2025:
Assessment year Unused tax losses Unabsorbed Total
depreciation
2018-19 - 1.00 1.00
2019-20 - 10.75 10.75
2020-21 - 254 83 254 .83
2021-22 = 216 41 216.41
2022-23 - 227 68 22768
2023-24 2,728.61 301.37 3,029.98
2024-25 15,027.60 260.89 15,288.49
2025-26 8.026.67 314.18 8,340.85
Tolal unabsorbed depreciation available for set off in future years 25,782.88 1.587.11 27,369.99
Tax rate 25.168%
Total deferred tax assets on unused lax losses and unabsorbed depreciation 6,888.48
Less. deferred tax assets recognised in the financial stalements &
6,888.48

Net deferred tax assets not recoanised as at 31 March 2025

=

~
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As at 31 March 2024:

Assessment year Unused tax losses Unabsorbed Total
depreciation

2018-19 - 1.00 1.00
2019-20 - 10.75 1075
2020-21 - 254.83 254.83
2021-22 - 216.41 216.41
2022-23 - 22768 227.68
2023-24 272861 301.37 3,029.98
2024-25 15,595.09 260.90 15,855.99
Total losses available for set off in fulure years 18.323.70 1,272.94 19.596.64
Tax rale 25.168%
Total deferred tax assets on unused lax losses and unabsorbed depreciation 4,932.08
Less: deferred tax assets recognised in the financial statements -

Net deferred tax assets not recoanised as at 31 March 2024 4,932.08

Notes:

(i) The Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation, business losses and other temporary differences. In absence of reasonable cerfainty that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which
such deferred tax assets shall be ulilised, the Company has not recognised deferred lax asset as at 31 March 2025. The Carry forward business losses and other losses of Rs. 25,782.88 lakhs (31 March 2024:
Rs. 18,323.70 lakhs) are available for offset for maximum period of eight years from the incurrence of loss and the unabsorbed deprecialion of Rs. 1,587 11 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 1,272.94 lakhs) are available

for offset for indefinite period.

Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provision)

Non-current Investment

- In subsidiary company. at cost
10,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each of Revolt Coco Limited

Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good, unless staled otherwise)

Prepaid expenses
Balances with statutory authorities

Considered doubtful
Capital advances

Less: Provision for doubtful balances

Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or nel realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

Raw malerial and components
Work in progress

Finished goods

Accessories

Spares

Note:

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

5.84 10.00
5.84 10.00
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
19.36 16.18
1,613.77 1,099.37
35.74 35.74
1,668.87 1,151.29
35.74 35.74
1,633.13 1,115.55
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(i) Inventories are net off of Rs. 7.76 (31 March 2024: Rs. 8.51 lakhs) representing write down of inventories to net realisable value, as assessed by the managemenl.

Trade receivables
(unsecured unless otherwise staled, at amortised cost)

Debtors for sale of bikes and components
- Considered good - Secured

1,093.23 701.54
76.56 69.92
306.87 215.34
52.81 25.95
424.93 372.21
1,954.40 1,384.96
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

314.47

- Considered good - Unsecured 23367
- Receivables having significant increase in credil risk - -
- Credit impaired - -
314.47 233.67
Trade receivables aaeing schedule:
Particulars Year Qutstanding for following periods*
Less than 6 months to 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than Total
6 months 1 vear 3 vears
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 2024-25 314.47 - - - - 314.47
2023-24 226.99 = - 6.68 - 233.67
Undisputed Trade receivables- credil impaired 2024-25 - - - 5
2023-24 - - - - % u
Disputed Trade receivables- considered good 2024-25 - - - - - -
2023-24 - - - - &
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired 2024-25 - - - - -
2023-24 - - - B
Total Gross 2024-25 314.47 - - - - 314.47
2023-24 226.99 - - 6.68 - 233.67
Less : Allowance for expecled credit loss 2024-25 = = - - 2
2023-24 - - - - - -
Net receivables 2024-25 314.47 - - - - 314.47
2023-24 226.99 - - A - 233.67
“For the purpose of ageing schedule, the invoice date has been considered as the due date by the Company. Accordingly, there are no "not due” receivables as alt the year-end
Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

Balances with banks
Balances with banks (current accounts)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

0.32

11.28

0.32

11.28
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d)

e)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 721.19 245.20
721.19 245.20
*Includes deposits under lien/ pledged including agains! bank guarantees, refer nole 34
Other current assets
(unsecured, considered good, unless stated othenwise) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Considered good
Balances wilh stalutory authorities 741.61 616.30
Prepaid expenses 173.98 68.17
Advances to suppliers 42516 1,185.65
Employee advances 0.27 0.27
Considered doubtful
Advances to suppliers 424 65 345.89
1.765.67 2,216.28
Less: Provision for doubltful balances 424.65 345.89
1,341.02 1,870.39
Equity share capital
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised share capital
2.50,00,000 (31 March 2024: 25,00,000 of Rs 10/- each) equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 250.00 250.00
250.00 250.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
1,84,30,140 (31 March 2024 18,43,014 of Rs.10/- each) equily shares of Rs. 1/- each, fully paid up 184.30 184.30
184.30 184.30
Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 18,43,014 184.30 18,43,014 184.30
Adjustment for stock split (from Rs. 10 1o Rs. 1/- per each share) 1,65,87,126 - - -
Add : Issued during the year - - - -
Equity shares at the end of the year 1,84,30,140 184.30 18,43,014 184.30
Rights/restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company upon receipt of the consent of the shareholders, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company of Rs. 1,84,30,140/- (Rupees One Crore Eighty Four Lakh Thirly Thousand One Hundred Forty
Only) divided into 18,43,014 (Eighteen Lakh Forty Three Thousand Fourleen) equity shares of face value Rs. 10 (Ten) each subdivided into Rs. 1,84,30,140/- (Rupees One Crore Eighty Four Lakh Thirly Thousand
One Hundred Forly Only) divided into 1,84,30,140 (One Crore Eighty Four Lakh Thirty Thousand One Hundred Foily) equity shares of face value Re. 1 (One) each.” The Company has only one class of equity
shares with voling rights, having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each shareholder of equity shares is enlilled to one vote per share held. Each share is entitled to dividend, if declared, in Indian Rupees. The
dividend, if any, proposed by Board of Directors is subjecl to the approval of Ihe Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entilled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after dislribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the Shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
1,84,30,140 (31 March 2024: 18,43,014 of Rs.10/- each) equity shares of Rs, 1/- each
Rattanindia Enterprises Limited along with its nominees 1,84,30,140 100.00% 18.43,014 100.00%

As per the records of the Company, including ils register of shareholders/ members and other declaralions received from shareholders/ members regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents
both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

No bonus shares or shares issued for consideralion other than cash or shares bought back over the last five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Detail of shares held by promoters*

Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares % change during the
year

Rattanindia Enterprises Limited along with ils nominees 31 March 2025 1,84,30,140 100.00% 0.00%

Rattanindia Enterprises Limited along with its nominees 31 March 2024 18,43,014 100.00% -

* Promoler mean "promoter” as defined under Companies Act, 2013
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (32,615.41) (15,903 77)
Add. Loss for the year (8,505 11) (16,611.64)
Balance at the end of the year (41,020.52) (32,515.41)
Employee stock option plan reserve
Balance al the beginning of the year -
Add: Stock oplion granted during the year 45.91 -
Less: Slock option lapsed during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 45.91 -
Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - =
Addition during the year - -
Add: Transferred on forfeiture of Share warrant 58.17 -
Balance at the end of the year 58.17 -
Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,954 .86 12,954 .86
Addition during the year - N
Balance at the end of the year 12,954.86 12,954.86
Share warrants
Balance al the beginning of the year 5817 58.17
Addition during the year - -
Less: Transferred lo Capilal Reserve on forfeiture 58.17 -
Balance at the end of the year - 58.17
(27,961.58) (19,502.38)

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium
Securilies premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Share warrants
A share warrant is a financial instrument which gives holder the right to acquire equily shares. Money received against share warranls comprise of share warrants issued by the Company against which shares are
yel to be allotted.

During the previous year 2021-22, the Company issued and allotted 317,328 share warrants amounting to Rs. 58.17 lakhs lo Ratlanindia Enterprises Limited (*Parent Company’). During the previous year 2022~
23, the Company, vide its letter dated 5 October 2022, extended the term of such share warrants for a further period of 18 months i.e. upto 27 April 2024. As per the agreed lerms, the Company was obligated to
issue equity shares to Parent Company at fair market value of the prevailing date on the date of conversion

The Parent Company did not exercise its right of conversion by 27 April 2024 and consequently, the Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeling held on 29 April 2024, approved to forfeil the amount of Rs.
58.17 lakhs received by the Company from parent company towards such share warranis

Borrowings
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current borrowings
Secured
Term loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited (refer note (i) below) 3,145.02
3,145.02 -
Current borrowings
Secured
Term loan from Adilya Birla Finance Limited (refer note (i) below) 870.14 -
Cash credit and other facilities (refer note (i) below) 2,34165 2,136.84
Bill Discounting 157.92 -
Unsecured
Inter corporates deposil (refer note (iii) below)” 23,998.97 17,290.47
27,368.68 19,427.31

*includes interest accrued amounting to Rs. 1,462.74 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 756.17 lakhs)

The Company had availed Working Capital Term Loan of Rs 4,000.00 Lakhs from Aditya Birla Finance Limited for a tenor of 2 years, secured by way of pledge of shares of Rallanindia Enterprises Limited, the
holding company providing minimum securily cover of 2.75X of non-cash backed exposure alongwilh Corporate Guaranlee by the Holding Company

The Company has availed cash credit amounling to Rs. 2,500.00 Lakhs. The tenor of the cash credit arrangement is 12 months, secured by way of exclusive charge on enlire current assels and movable fixed
assels of the company (both present and future), pledge of shares of Rattanindia Enferprises Limited owned by Laurel Energetic Pvt Ltd, providing minimum security cover of 2.5X of non-cash backed exposure
Fixed deposit to an extent of 20% of the facility amount duly lien marked in favor of the bank. Fixed deposil to be collable & cumulative (interest) in nature. Unconditional & irrecoverable Corporate Guarantee of
Rattanindia Enlerprises Limited to remain valid during entire tenor of the facilities.

The Company has entered into agreement with RBL Bank to avail letter of credit facility amounting 1o Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs secured by way of above mentioned securily. LC dues are repayable during 6 months
period as per the terms of the LC issued

Inter-corporale deposils are unsecured and carry effective interest rale of 7.25% p.a. and are repayable on demand

Lease liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Lease liabililies 88.45 -
88.45 -
Current
Lease liabilites 5.43 -

5.43 =
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22 Provisions

Non- current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 39)
Pravision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for others
Provision for warranties (refer note below)

Current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 39)
Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for others
Provision for warranties (refer note below)

Movement in provision for warranties

Opening balance

Addition during the year
Amount ulilised during the year
Closing balance

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

132.79 86.03
4011 43.49
465.08 434.36
637.98 563.88

1.0 0.66

1.7 1.83
636.90 546.43
639.68 548.92

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

980.79 849.56
1,400.29 1,284.88
1,279.10 1,153.65
1,101.98 $80.79

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of estimate of the fulure economic oulflows that will be required under the Company's obligalions for warranties. The estimate is made on (he basis
of historical experience and/or fechnical assessment and may vary as a resull of new materials.

23 Trade pavables

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
-Tolal outslanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises (refer note 53) 285.06 25.92
-Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,357.61 1,841.20
1,642.67 1,867.22
Trade payable ageing schedule :-
Outstanding for following periods*
Particulars Unbilled/! Less than 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than Total
Accruals 1 vear 3 vears
Due to MSME 2024-25 - 285.06 - - - 285.06
2023-24 - 25.92 - - - 25.92
Due to others 2024-25 361.82 852.17 61.13 82.49 - 1,357.61
2023-24 589.05 1,212.43 39.82 - - 1,841.30
Disputed dues to MSME 2024-25 - - - - - -
2023-24 - - - - - -
Disputed dues to others 2024-25 - - = E
2023-24 - - - - - -
Total 2024-25 361.82 1,137.23 61.13 82.49 - 1,642.67
2023-24 589.05 1,238.35 39.82 - - 1,867.22
* For the purpose of presentation of ageing schedule, the invoice date has been considered as the due date by the Company.
24 Other financial liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employee related payables 476.04 34197
Capital credilors 0.86 6.50
Security and earnest money deposils 475.51 454,96
Booking advance refundable to customers 140,67 235.82
1,093.08 1,039.25
25 Other liabilities
As at As at

Non- current
Deferred income (also refer note 3(b))

Current

Advance from cuslomers

Deferred income (also refer note 3(b))
Stalutory dues

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

217.82 278.00
217.82 278.00
1,002.92 1,142.55
303.39 344.21
79.68 169.90
1,385.99 1,656.66
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26 Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of products
Sale of bikes (net of rebate and discounts) 13,052.68 9,088.57
Sale of traded goods / spare parts 1,603.23 1,571.99
Sale- others 137.77 76.11
14,693.68 10,736.67
Sale of services
Technical services 379.18 380.82
Other operating revenue 5.71 3.47
15,078.57 11,120.96
Disclosures as per Ind AS 115
A. Disaggregation of revenue
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
‘} Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) Based on nature of goods/services
Sale of goods 14,693.68 10,736.67
Sale of services 384.89 384.29
15,078.57 11,120.96
(b) Based on timing of revenue
Revenue recognised at a point in time 14,693.68 10,736.67
Revenue recognised over time 384.89 384.29
15,078.57 11,120.96

B. Performance obligation
The Company's primary performance obligation under contract with customers for sale of goods and services is salisfied as the goods are
delivered/ control is transferred to the customers and services are rendered.

C. Contract balances

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Receivables

Trade receivables (gross) 314.47 233.67
Unbilled revenue for passage of time -
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts - -

Net receivables (a) 314.47 233.67
Contract liabilities

Advance from customers 1,002.92 1,142.55
Deferred revenue 521.21 622.21
Total contract liabilities (h) 1,5624.13 1,764.76

Contract liability is the Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from
the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are
recognized as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

D. Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue as per contract with customers
Sale of products 15,428.72 12,034.14
Adjustments:
Incentives and other adjustments (735.04) (1,297.47)
14,693.68 10,736.67
Sale of services 384.89 384.29
Total revenue from contract with customers 15,078.57 11,120.96

| Transaction price - remaining performance obligation

| The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaclion price yet to be recognized as at the end of the

| reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as
given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue
recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the enlity's performance completed till the reporting period.
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27 Other income

28

29

30

31

Interest on Income tax

Interest on bank deposits

Interest on loan given*

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on termination of lease

Excess liabilty written back

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net)
Miscellaneous income

*Refer note 41 for disclosure of transaction with related party

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw materials
Add: Purchases
Less : Closing stock of raw materials

Change in inventory

Work in progress
Inventories at the end of the year
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Net decrease/ (increase)

Finished goods, spares and accessories
Inventories at the end of the year
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Net decrease/ (increase)

Total decrease/ (increase)

Employee benefits expense**

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity and compensated absenses (also refer note 39)
Employee stock option expense (also refer note 51)
Staff welfare expenses

** Net off of Rs.284.11 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.Nil) transferred to intangible assets

Finance costs

Interest on
- term loan
- cash credit facility
- inter corporate loans
- delayed payment of taxes
- lease liability
Other finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

0.49 4.25
24.76 21.04
2.58 -

- 1.62

- 7.04
56.32 -

- 2.45

247 33.39

86.62 69.69

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

701.54 851.80
14,445.47 5,345.18
1,093.23 701.54
14,053.78 5,495.44

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

76.56 69.92
69.92 1.17
(6.64) (68.75)
784.60 613.50
613.50 4,670.34
(171.10) 4,056.84
(177.74) 3,988.09

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

2,604.77 1,863.63
87.44 45.49
74.30 44.07
45.91 -
51.10 28.32

2,863.52 1,981.51

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

142.47 -
248.91 212.72
1,472.91 777.28
0.06 0.13

0.87 -
179.15 80.16
2,044.37 1,070.29

(8]

S = 4\
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32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 4)
Depreciation on right of use asset (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)

33 Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Professional, technical and consultancy*
Freight outward

Power and fuel

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Selling and distribution expenses
Research and development expenses**
Rent (also refer note 49)

Repair and maintenance

Website and server maintenance charges
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Provision for bad and doubtful balances
Outsourced manpower

Loss on discard of inventory

Job work expenses

Warranty expenses (also refer note 22)
Miscellaneous expenses

*Includes remuneration to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
As auditors

** Net off of Rs.16.61 lakh ( 31 March 2024: Rs.Nil) transferred to intangible assets

s

3D Accd

(%)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

249.61 232.32
0.98 -
104.94 129.13
355.53 361.45

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

836.58 1,131.68
358.25 364.69
267.63 135.03
28.29 2277
33.75 12.01
216.32 87.44
68.16 2210
53.80 57.78
149.32 135.48
38.01 12.44
263.06 310.44
6.26 -
78.76 640.69
247.15 121.79
7.76 -

54.73 304.16
1,400.29 1,284 .88
455.21 275.05
4,553.33 4,918.43
15.00 15.00
15.00 15.00
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34
(a)

(b)

(c)

35

Details of contingent liabilities, pending litigations and other matters:
Claims not acknowledged as debt

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Stamp duty demand, that the Company is currently contesting before the regulatory 3.34 3.34
authorities

Claims by customers (alongwith interest) in the normal course of business may be payable as and when the outcome of the related matters
are finally determined. Management based on the legal inputs and historic trends, believes that no material liability will devolve on the
Company, in respect of such matters.

Others

Bank guarantees provided to suppliers aggregating to Rs. 837.91 lakhs (31 March 2024 : Rs. 762.61 lakhs) which are secured by pledge
on fixed deposits of Rs 171.58 lakhs (20 % Fixed Deposits given to RBL Bank against limit exposure) (31 March 2024 : Rs 235.25 lakhs)
as margin for issuance of such bank guarantees.

The Board of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segments”. The Company's operating segments are established in the manner consistent with the components of the Company that are
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined in 'Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.’ The operations of the
Company fall under “OEM of motorcycles in Electric mobility segment” business only, which is considered to be the only reportable
segment in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments.

. Information about operation segment:

The Company deals in only one product i.e. electric motorcycles and related spares and accessories. Hence, no separate disclosure is
required.

. Information about geographical areas:

The entire revenue of the Company are made to beneficiaries which are domiciled in India. Also, all the non-current assets of the Company
are located in India. The Company is engaged in operations within India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate
geographical disclosure is considered necessary.

. Information about major customers (from external customers):

Details of major customers from whom Company has earned revenue of more than 10% is as under:

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Customer A 1,761.30
Customer B 1,108.44
Customer C 772.21

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Customer A 3,106.82
Customer B 2,780.52
Customer C 703.95

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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37

38

The Company operates as an OEM of motorcycles in electric mobility segment. With sustainability and adaptability to environment friendly
and energy efficient vehicles gaining momentum across the country with various government incentives, the Company is confident of
exponential year on year growth in near future. Further, over the years, the Company has been able to achieve localisation by developing
supply chain network within India that is now helping the Company to rationalise its costs through launch of new models and consequently,
achieve positive gross margin. Additionally, the Company has been expanding its footprints globally and has already opened dealerships in
Sri Lanka and Nepal and additionally, for offering unparalleled customer experience to domestic customers, the Company has been
opening "Company Owned Company Operated” experience hubs through its newly set-up subsidiary company- Revolt COCO Limited.

During the current year, the Company has incurred loss of Rs. 8,505.11 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 16,611.64 lakhs) and has accumulated
losses of Rs. 41,020.52 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 32,515.41 lakhs) and the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by Rs. 26,780.60 lakhs as at 31 March 2025. Based on the expected growth in the Company's business coupled with
various initiatives including localisation of supply chain undertaken by management to improve liquidity and profitability and the expansion
of dealer network both in domestic and overseas markets, the management is confident of Company's ability to generate sufficient cash
flow from operations in the future, to enable it to operate as a going concern. Management is confident that the Company shall be able to
generate adequate resources to meet short- term fund requirements based on negotiations for alternate credit arrangements with local
vendors, upfront deposits from sales dealers, and unutilised credit facilities available with the Company aggregating to Rs.48,487.47 lakhs.
Further, Rattanindia Enterprises Limited (Holding Company) has confirmed to extend necessary operational and financial support to the
Company to enable it to continue its business operations and meet its obligations at least for a period of twelve months from the date of
approval of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis and the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities as recorded in these financial statements
in the normal course of business.

A sum of Rs. 2,355.38 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs.1,715.67 lakhs) has been presented as 'balances with statutory authorities’ under 'Other
non-current assets' and 'Other current assets', as at 31 March 2025, that the management is confident of recovery through utilisation
against the future sales and service orders, based on management approved projections and refund claims filed/ in the process of being
filed, in accordance with applicable GST regulations.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2024, IFCI Limited, the project manager for Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of Hybrid and
Electric Vehicles - Phase Il (FAME-II) scheme, on behalf of The Ministry of Heavy Industries (‘MHI'), in its show cause notice dated 3 April
2023 ('SCN’) proposed to challenge the Company's eligibility under the FAME Il scheme, pertaining to bikes sold in earlier years. Though
the Company had necessary certifications with respect to compliance under FAME Il scheme, the management, in order to continue its
momentum for growth and expansion and keeping in mind the interest of the consumers and without accepting any of the allegations,
contentions, or statements in the notice and without prejudice, offered to amicably resolve and as a strategic business decision, voluntarily
decided to forgo the outstanding FAME-I1 incentive claims recoverable aggregating to Rs. 5,005.58 lakhs and further, refunded the FAME-
Il incentives already received il 31 March 2023, aggregating to Rs. 4,430.34 lakhs pertaining fo claims filed for the bikes sold in earlier
years, along with interest of 572.09 lakhs. Accordingly, the Company had presented such amounts forgone/ refunds aggregating to Rs.
10,008.01 lakhs as ‘exceptional item’ in the previous year Statement of profit and loss. The Company's management is confident that the
above decisions shall help in boosting up the Company’s future sales, market share and profitability.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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39 Employee benefit expenses

b

)

Defined contribution:

Contributions are made 1o the Government Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which cover all regular employees eligible under applicable Acts. Both the eligible employees and the
Company make pre-determined contributions to the Provident Fund. The contributions are normally based upon a proportion of the employee’s salary. The Company has recognized in the
stalement of profit and loss an amount of Rs. 74.22 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs. 40.48 lakhs), towards employer's contribution towards Provident Fund.

Defined benefits:

Gratuity scheme - This is an unfunded defined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered at least 5 years of continuous service, 1o receive one-half month's salary for each year
of completed service at the time of retirement/exit/death as below.

i) On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.

iy On death in service: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period. Graluily payable to employee in case (i) and (i), as mentioned above, is computed
as per the Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1972 except that the Company does nol have any limit on gratuity amount.

Other benefits:

Pravision for unfunded compensaled absences payable to eligible employees on retirement/ separation is based upon an actuarial valualion as al the year ended 31 March 2025 Major drivers in
acluarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. The commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’ as at the year end. Gains/
losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the statement of profit and loss as identified by the Management of the Company.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sels oul the status of gratuity and compensated absences and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for
ihe year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absences

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Liability recognised in the balance sheet:
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 86.69 60.32 45.32 57.64
Current service cost 64.55 43.40 18.29 2488
Interest cost 6.29 4.44 3.29 4.32
Benefits paid (1.22) (0.54) (6.92) (8.54)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses and Remeasurement (22.49) (20.93) (18.12) (32.98)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year (as per actuarial valuation) 133.82 86.69 41.86 45,32

Expenses during the year

Current service cost 64.55 43.40 18.29 24.88
Interest cost 6.29 4.44 3.29 432
Actuarial gains - - (18.12) (32.98)
Component of defined benefit cost charged to statement of profit and loss 70.84 47.84 3.46 (3.78)

Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations:
Actuarial (gains)/ losses (22 49) (20.93) -
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income/ (loss) (22.49) (20.93) - -

Bifurcation of Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absences

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on arising from change in demoaraphic assumptions - - E -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 3.80 1.46 1.43 1.01
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on arising from change in experience adjustments (26.28) (22.39) (19.55) (33.99)

The actuarial valuation in respect of commitments and expenses relating to unfunded gratuily and compensated absences are based on the following assumptions which if changed, would affect
the commitment’s size, funding requirements and expenses:

Economic assumptions

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.04% 7.25%
Expected rale of salary increase 10.00% 10.00%

Demographic assumptions

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality Table 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)

Ages Withdrawal rate (%) | Withdrawal rate (%)

Upto 30 Years 5 5

From 31 to 44 Years 3 3

Above 44 Years 2 2

The employer's best estimate of contribulions expecled to be paid during the annual period beginning after the balance sheet date, towards gratuily and compensated absences is Rs. 104.73
lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 87.50 lakhs) and Rs. 23.82 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 35.90 lakhs) respeclively.
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¢) Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit obligation

d

40

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Impact of the change in discount rate

i) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (31 March 2024: 0.50%) (14.569) (10.73)
ii) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (31 March 2024: 0.50%) 16.35 12.05
b) Impact of the change in salary increase

i) Impact due to increase of 0.560% (31 March 2024: 0.50%) 14.14 19.57
ii) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (31 March 2024: 0.50%) (13.48) (10.55)

Sensilivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivilies as 1o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on

retirement.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0to 1 year 2.78 0.66
11lo 2 years 3.22 1.25
2 1o 3 years 3.38 1.58
310 4 years 413 3.86
4 to 5 years 4.65 2.30
5 to 6 years 4.39 2.14

163.12 74.91

6 years onwards

Earnings/ (loss) per equity share (EPS):

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

2024: Rs. 1 each)

31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
Loss for the year (8,527.60) {16,632.57)
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year (nominal value of equity 18,43,014 18,43.014
share- Rs.10 each) (31 March 2024: Rs. 10 each)
Effect of share split of 1 equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each into 10 equity shares of face 1,84,30,140 1.84,30,140
value of Rs. 1 each (also refer note 18(b))
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year for computing 1,84,30,140 1,84,30,140
basic and diluted earnings per share
Adjusted/Revised number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,84,30,140 1,84,30,140
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year for computing 1,84,30,140 1,84,30,140
diluted earnings per share*
Basic earning per share (in Rs.) (nominal value of equity share - Rs.1 each) (46.27) (90.25)
(31 March 2024: Rs. 1 each)
Diluted earning per share (in Rs.) (nominal value of equity share - Rs.1 each) (31 March (46.27) (90.25)

*The effect of stock options issued during the year and effect of conversion of share warranls on earmnings per share is anti-dilutive and hence, not considered for computation of dilutive earmnings

per share during the current year and previous year, respectively.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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41 Related party disclosures

As per Ind AS-24 "Related Party Disclosure”, the relaled parties where centrol exist or where significant influence exists and with whom transaclions have taken place are as below:

I Holding Company

Il  Other related parties:

Rattanindia Enterprises Limited (REL)

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel (including relatives) have significant influence —

(with whom fransactions have been entered during the year/ previous year):

Tupelo Builders Private Limited
Priapus Developers Private Limited

Neobrands Limited
Neotech Enterprise Ltd
Rattanindia Power Limited

S AW N =

Il Directors/Key Management Personnel
Amit Jain (PAN: AFKPJ7410C)
Vaibhav Poonia
Sandeep Kumar
Rahul Mutreja
Saini Vinu Balwant
Amit Jain ( PAN - AEUPJ9311H )

IV Transactions during the year:

Revolt COCO Ltd (Formerly Known as Neoseller Limited)

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence
Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence

Subsidiary Company

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence
Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence
Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence

Director of the Company (w.e f. 14 January 2023 to 29 May 2023)

Director of the Company
Director of the Company
Company Secretary of the Company

Director of the Company (w.e.f. 29th May 2023 1o 23 August 2023)

Director of the Company

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Rattanindia Enterprises Limited Inter-corporate deposit received - 7,100.00
Inlerest expenses on inter-corporate deposil 810.86 645.80
Commission on corporale guarantee 103.63 38.10
(refer note ¢ below)
Management support fee paid/ payable 145.86 135.97
Tupelo Builders Private Limited Inter-corporate deposit received - 5,350.00
Interest expenses on inter-corporate deposit - 120.88
Inter-corporate deposit repaid - 5,350.00
Priapus Developers Private Limited Inter-corporate deposit received 10,195.65 5,350.00
Interest expenses on inter-corporate deposit 662.04 10.60
Inter-corporate deposit repaid 4,217.00 s
Revolt COCO Limited Inter-corporate loan given 108.04 -
Interest income on inter-corporale deposit 258 -
Inter-corporate deposit received 30.00 -
Sale of goods 268.09 -
Sale of services 2,20 -
Purchase of Services 6.60 -
Website Charges recoverable from Revolt COCO Ltd 0.79 -
Neobrands Limited Purchase of Goods 1.69 -
Neotec Enterprise Ltd Marketing Commission Received 0.03 -
Rattanindia Power Limited Lease rent 1.34 -
Rattanindia Power Limited Maintenance 0.46 -
Key management personnel Remuneration (refer note b) 107.03 93.07

V Summary of outstanding balances

Name of related party Nature 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rattanindia Enterprises Limiled Loan taken 11,184.31 11,184.31
Interest payable on loan taken 805.27 614.57
Trade payables (also refer note c) 9.56 207.55
Tupelo Builders Private Limiled Interest payable on loan taken - 108.79
Priapus Developers Private Limited Loan taken 11,328.65 5,350.00
Inlerest payable on loan taken 657.47 9.54
Revolt COCO Limiled Loan receivable 78.04 -
Interest receivable on loan given 2.56 -
Trade receivables 161.47 -
Neotech Enlerprise Ltd Other receivables 0.03 -
Raitanindia Power Limited Trade payables 1.65 -
Key management personnel Remuneration payable 8.92 12.40

Notes:

a) Al transactions with related parties are made on the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's lenglh ransactions and within the ordinary course of business. QOutstanding balances

at respective year ends are unsecured and settlement is generally done in cash.

b) Remuneration does notinclude provision made for employee benefits as the same is determined for the Company as a whale. During the current year, the Company granted stock
options to the eligible employees including execulive director. Since such slock options are not tradeable, no perquisile or benefit is immediately conferred upon the employees by grant
of such options and accordingly, the said grant has not been considered as 'remuneration’.

¢) Rallanindia Enterprises Limited has provided corporate guarantee against purchase invoice financing/cash credit, discounting and letter of credit facility amounting to Rs. 4,000.00 lakhs
and Rs. 3,500.00 lakhs, availed by the Company from Aditya Birla Finance Limited and RBL Bank, pursuant lo sanction letters dated 06 November 2024 and 28 November 2024

respectively.




Revolt Intellicorp Private Liinited

CIN:U34203D1.2017PTC420572

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

42 Details of assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as securily for current and non-current borrowings are:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Inventories 1,954.40 1,384 .96
Olher current assets (includes trade receivables and advances lo suppliers) 3,40053 2,536.42
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 759.70 890.47
Other intangibles assels 569.60 77.19

The Company had a working capilal limit in excess of Rs 500.00 lakhs sanctioned by HDFC Bank based on the security of current assels (mortgage of immoveable property of Promoler's enlities, slocks and other
current assels) up to 21 January 2025. The yearly returns! stalements, in respect of the working capilal limits had been filed by the Company with such bank and such statements are in agreement with the books of

account of the Company for the respective periods excepl for the following:

Quarter Current asset type

Amount disclosed as
per return

Amount as per
books of accounts

Difference

Remarks/ reason, if any

Quarter 1 Stock

1,387.62

1,400.43

(12.81)

The Company submitted the
returns 1o the banks based
on provisional books of

Other current assels

604.63

608.24

@61

accounts within the due date|
resulting in variances vis-a-
vis books of accounts
finalised by the
management subsequently.

43 Effective tax reconciliation

w

Particulars

Loss before tax

(16,632.57)

Total adjustments [B]

Domeslic tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense [A] (2,146.23) (4,186.09)
Adjustment for non-deduclible expenses
Difference in depreciation charged as per Income-tax Act, 1961 vis-a-vis depreciation as per books of accounts 10.40 29.14
Employee benefils 16.65 8.60
Expenses never allowed under Income- lax Act, 1961 0.12 031
Others items disallowed/(allowed) under Income-tax Act, 1961 19.82 161.25
Deferred tax assets nol recognised on business loss and unabsorbed depreciation 2,099.24 3.98679
2,146.23 4,186,09

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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45 Financial instruments

]

i)

i)

Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial iabities measured at fair value in the statement of financial postion ate grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observabity of signficant inputs la the measurement, as follovs

Leve! 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial nstruments
Level 2. The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market is determined using valuation techrigues which mauniise the use of observable market data and rely as [iile as possible an entity specific estimates

Level 3 If one or more of the signficant inpults is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in fevel 3

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
There are no assets and habilties measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair value through comprehensive income

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial habdities measured at amortised costin the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values (1efer nate 46 (1)}

iv) Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
There are no assets and habities measured at fan value through profit of loss and fair value through comprehensive income

46 Financial risk management

i} Financial instruments by category

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars FVTPL Fvocl Amortised FVTPL Fvocl Amorlised
cost cost
Financial assets
Trade recevables & 314.47 - 23367
Cash and cash equivalents B = 032 - 1126
Other bank balances - > 72119 - = 24520
Other financial assels + 1,024,863 - B 176 89
Total - - 2,060.61 - = 667.14
Financial liabilities
Borrowangs = - 40,513.70 1942731
Tiade payables . 1,642 67 - 1.867 22
Leasz aablties - - 9388 - ] -
Cther financial habi'ties - 1,093.08 - 1.039.25
Total * 33,343.33 - s 22,333.78
value of the financial assets and financial liabidies are included at the amount which would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a kability in an orderly transaction betyveen the market participants The folowing methods and assumptions

viere used to estimate the fair values
(a) Tiade receizables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, borrawings, trade payables, lease habiiies and other financial habiities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short- term matuiities of these instruments
(b} 0t uses best in the fair value of its financial instiuments However, there are inherent imitations in any estimation technigue. Therefore, for substanbally all financial instruments, the fair value estmates presented above are
not necessarly indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have reatsed or pald in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reparting dates may be different from the
amounts reported at each year end
{c) Investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, 'Separate financial statements’ and hence, not presented here

iy Risk management
The Cumpany is exposed lo various risks in relation to financial instruments The Company’s financial assets and kabifties by category ate summansed in note 47(1) The main types of risks are market risk, credt risk and hquidity nisk. The most significant
financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below.
The Company's risk management is carried out by a central finance department {of the Company) under direction of the Boaid of Directors. The Board of Ditectors provides principles for overall risk management, and covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit sk and investment of excess liquidity.

A) Creditrisk

Cradt risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. Credd risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments carried at amortised cost and deposts with banks and financial institutions. The
Company's maximum exposure to credt risk is hmited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at 31 March 2025 and 31 Maich 2024, as summarised below.

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables (i) 314.47 23367
Cash and cash equivalents (i) 03z 11.28
Other bank balances (i) 721.19

Other financial assets (in) 1,024 63 17699

The Company considers the probabity of default upon intal recognition of asset and winether there has been a significant increase in credt risk on an on-geing basis throughout each reporting period. In general, dis presumed that credt risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due. A default on a financial assetis when the counterparty fals to make contractual payments when they fall due. This defintion of default is determined by considering the business
enviranment in which entity operates and other macio-economic factors

(1) The Company’s trade receivables are from channel partners/ dealers who have paid securfy deposis to the Company and further, make advance payments for majority of the amounts before delivery of bikes Therefore. these frade receivables are
considered high qualiy and accordingly. no Ife time expected credt losses are recognised on such receivables based on simplfied approach

(1) The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high qualty exteinal credit ratings
(i) Other financial assets include incentive receivables, GST refund receivables and olher receivables including security deposits. Credt risk related to incentive recewables is managed by continuous monitoring of changes in regulatory environment including

changes in regulations and government policies under which such incentives are recefvable and making necessary ad in the financial in case the assesses that credit risk has increased significantly. For other financial assets,
the management montors the recoverabiity of such assets on continuous basis and makes adjustments wherever deemed necessary

it risk exposure
it 31 March 2025:

Particulars Estimated gross carrying Expected credit loss Carrying amount

amount at default (net of provision)
Trade bl 314.47 314.47
Cash and cash 032 032
Other bank balances 721.19 - 72119
Other financial assets 1.284.48 350.46 944 03
Loan 8060 - 80.60
As at 31 March 2024:
Particulars Estimated gross carrying Expected credit loss Carrying amount

amount at default (net of provision)
Tiade b 23367 = 233.67
Cash and cash 11.28 = 11.28
Other bank balances 24520 = 245.20
Other financial assets 527 45 350.46 176.99

Reconciliation of expected credit loss for other financial assels

Reconciliation

Other financial assets

Loss allowance as at 1 April 2023 1,668.53
Addiion/ {deletion} durina the year (net) (1,318 07),
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2024 350.46

Additon/ (delebon) durina the year (net}

Loss allowance as at 31 March 2025

350.46
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Liquidity risk

Piudent liquidity nsk management imptes maintzining sufficient cash and marketable securties and the avalabiiy of funding through 2n adequate amount of committed credd facities to meet ablgations when due Due to the natue of the business, the

Company maintains flexbiity in funding by mail labdity under facities

Management monfors raling forecasts of the Campany's Lquidity position and cash and cash equavalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the iquidity of the marketin which the entty operates

s of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financizl habities into refevant maturity groupings bzsed on their contraciual maturiies for all non-derivatve financial hablties
The amaunts dsclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances due wathin 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of dscounting 1s not significant

31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years. Total
Non-derivalives
Borrawings 27.368.68 3,14502 30,513.70
Trade payables 1642.67 2 = 164267
Other financial kabities 1.083.08 = = 1,093.08
30,104.43 3,145.02 - 33,249.45
31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 years Hore than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 19,427 31 - 18,427 31
Trade payables 1,867 22 1,867.22
Other financial iabties 1,039.25 = 1,039.25
22,333.78 £ - 22,333.78

B) Market risk
a) Foreign currency risk

Maiket risk is the nsk of any loss in future earnings, in realzable fair values of in fulure cash flows that may result from change in the price of financial instrument The Company’s activities expose it pimanly to the financa nsks of changes in foreian currency
exchange rates and interest rates nsk/iquidity which Company enters into derivative financial instruments to mianage its exposure to foreign currency risk including expart receivables Future specific market movements can not be normally predicted with

reasonable accuracy.
Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency fisk at the end of the reporting year is as under -

Foreign Curtency Exposure
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount in Amount in Amount in foreign [ Amount in Lakhs
foreign Lakhs (INR) currency (USD) (INR)
currency
sy
Other current assels
Tiade Receivatles 1.82.562 151.89 3
1.82.562 151.89 - -
Sensitivity
The sensitivity analsys of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period
Foreign Currency Sensitivi
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
usp INR {in Lakhs) uso INR (in Lakhs)
1% Depreciation in INR
Sensitvity (1.844.08) (1.52) = =
Tolal (1.844.08) 11.52) - -
1% Appreciation in INR
Sensitvity 1844066 1.52
Tolal 1.844.06 1.52 - -
b) Interest rate risk exposure
i) Liabilities/assets
The Company's policy is 1o minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 2025, the Company is exposed ta changes in market interest rates through bank barrowings at vanable interest rates The Company's fixed
deposits are carred al amortised cost and are ficed rate deposits They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest
rates
Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company fo interest rate risk
Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Variable rate:
Borrovang 2,341.65 2,136 84
Tolal variable rate exposure 2,341.65 2,136.84
Fixed rate:
Borrowing 28,172.05 17,280.47
Total fixed rate exposure 28,172.05 17,290.47
Sensitivity
Below is the sensitraty of profit or loss and equity due to changes in interest rates, assuming no change in other variables
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest sensitivity
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (31 March 2024 100 basis points) 3390 1850
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (31 March 2024. 100 basis points) (33.80) (18 50)
47 Capital management

The Company' s capital managzment abjectives are

- 1o ensure the Company's absity to continue 2s a aaing concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure whie aveiding excessive leverage This lakes into account the subordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt The Campany
manages the capital stiucture and makes adjustments to tin the lght of changes in economic condtions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends

paid to shareholders, retuin capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assels to reduce debt
The amounts managed as capital by the Company for the reporting periods under review are summarised as follows

|Particulars

Long-term borrowings
Short-term borowings
Interest accrued on borowings
Total borrowings

Less

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances

Met debts

Total equity (i)

Net debt to equity ratio

31 March 2025] 31 ch 2024
314502 -
27,25399 18671 14
11469 78617
30,513.70 19,427.31
032 1128
72119 245.20
2079219 18.170.83
(27,777.28) (19,318.08)
-107% -98%
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Lease liability Long-terim Short-term Total
borrowings * borrowings

As at 31 March 2024 - - 19,370.69 19,370.69

Cash flows:

Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) borrowings (net) - 3,967.60 7.118.79 11,086.39

Payment of lease liability - - = -

Non-cash:

Other adjustments - - - -

As at 31 March 2025 - 3,967.60 26,489.48 30,457.08

Particulars Lease liability Long-term Short-term Total
borrowings * borrowings

As at 31 March 2023 98.47 - 5,964.13 6,062.60

Cash flows:

Proceeds from! (Repayment of) borrowings (net) - * 13.406.56 13,406.56

Payment of lease liability - -

Non-cash:

Olher adjustments (98.47) - - (98.47)

As at 31 March 2024 - - 19,370.69 19,370.69 i

* Includes current maturities of long-term barrowings classified under shorl-term borrowings.

Leases disclosure
Additional information on the right-of-use assets by class of assets is as follows:

Right-of use assets Carrying amount Addition/ Depreciation |Carrying amount
as on (Deletion) as on

1 Aoril 2024 (net) 31 March 2025
Right-of use assets (refer note - 5) - 94.35 0.98 93.37
Total = 94.35 0.98 93.37
Right-of use assets Carrying amount Addition/ Depreciation | Carrying amount

as on (Deletion) as on

1 Aoril 2023 (net) 31 March 2024
Right-of use assets (refer note - §) 89.29 (89.29) - -
Total 89.29 (89.29) - -
Lease liabilities are presenled in the slatement of financial posilion as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Current 543 -
MNon-current 88.45 -
Total 93.88 -
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Fulure minimum lease payments are as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 Total

vears

Lease paymenls 16.09 69.19 65.41 150.69
Finance charges 10.66 34.65 11.03 56.34
Net present values 5.43 34,53 54.38 94,35

The Company had tolal cash outflows for leases of Rs. Nil during the year ended 31 March 2025 as the amount are due in June 2025 (31 March 2024 Rs.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Nil).

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 0.98

Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.87 -
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 149.32 135.48
Total 151.17 135.48

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital and other commitments not provided for (net of advances) is Rs. 7,375.90 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 2,026.06 lakhs)

mentioned amount, cerlain purchase orders issued lo suppliers are for open quantities.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Employee stock options schemes

The Company has formulated ESOP scheme for the eligible employees of the Company.

During the current financial year, the Company has established the "Revolt Employee Stock Option Plan 2024" ("ESOP 2024"). The Company granted 181,700 equity seltled
options at an exercise price of Rs. 326 per option under the ESOP 2024 to eligible employees which gave them the right to subscribe to stock options representing an equal
number of equily shares of face value of Rs. 1 each of the Company. These options shall vest uniformly over a period of 4 years commencing one year after the date of grant.

The Fair values of the options under the ESOP 2024 using the Black-Scholes model based on the following parameters, was Rs. 128.80 per option for ESOP 2024, as

certified by an independent valuer:

Particulars Grant on

27 Aug 2024
Exercise price (Rs. 326 per oplion) Rs. 326.00
Expected volatility 25.49 10 30.13%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 0%
Option lite 3.50 to 6.50 years
Expected dividend yield 0%

Risk free rate of interest

6.68% lo 6.74%

Summary of options granted in respect of the ESOP 2024 are as under:

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Average exercise
price per share
option (Rs.)

Number of options

Average exercise
price per share
option (Rs.)

Number of options

Opening balance

Options granted during the year 326 1,82,400 - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options surrendered/ lapsed during the year 326 700 - -
Closing balance 1,81,700 -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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52 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment, received Presidential assent in September 2020. The

53

54

55

56

Code has been published in the Gazette of India, however, the date on which the Code will come into effect is yet to be notified and final rules/ interpretation are yet fo be
issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code and the rules thereon
becomes effective.

Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 have been deiermined based on the information available with the
Company and the required disclosures are given below:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 285.06 24.82
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - 1.10
(iiiy The amount of interest paid by the buyer along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed - -
day.
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - 1.10
(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when interest dues - -
above are actually paid

The above information has been determined to the exient such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied
upon by the Auditors.

Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-lax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, shall use only
such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level to log any direct
data changes, used for maintaining accounting records. Further, there was no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with as noted by the management.The
accounting software retains the log of 99 modifications made in master data at the application level.

Certain previous year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation. Such reclassification did not have any material impact on the

current year financial statements.
f
A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Revolt Intellicorp Private Limited

o

Sandeep Kumar

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

Deepak utlal

)

Vaibhavy Poonia

Partner

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Director
DIN: 08122549

Place: Gurugram

Date: 27 Mﬂgifs

T
Rahul Mutreja

Company Secretary
Membership No. A31225

Place: Gurugram
Date 27 May 2025

Director
DIN: 06924172

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025




